
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD 

10 May 2019 
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee  
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 23 May 2019 commencing at 10.30 am in the The Council Chamber, The 
White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, 
LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  

 

3.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 23 May 2019 
 

 

 

any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

6.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-
Committee meeting held on 28 February 2019. 
 

7.   MARKET POLICY UPDATES (Pages 5 - 16) 

 

 To receive and consider a report regarding revision of the Market Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure and raise awareness of the intent to revise the Market 
Cancellation Procedure.  Appendix A (Adopted Market Trader Procedure) and 
Appendix B (2019 Revised Market Trader Procedure) attached. 
 

8.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 17 - 24) 

 

 To receive a general update on market activity. 
 

9.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 25 - 28) 

 

 To receive a report on the market budgets and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 58 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 28 FEBRUARY 2019 AT 1030 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  J M Freeman  
  T Morris 
  F Kharawala 
  D Bowater 
             S Cotter 
    K Cursons 
    A Dodwell   
   

                      Also in attendance:       V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services)  
  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  Adrian Harrison (Market Manager) 
  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  Chloe Peters 
  Dave Gibbins (Market Trader Representative)  
      
  
            Members of the Public: 0 
            Members of the Press: 0 
  
 

122/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Peter Elmore and Councillor D 
Bowater substituted by Councillor A Dodwell. 

 
123/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made.  
 

124/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
  There were no questions from the public. 

   
125/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 29 November 2018 for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 29 November 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly. 
 

126/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE 
    

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 59 

 The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity including 
information on delivery against market plan targets, trader recruitment and 
promotion and marketing of the market.  

 
 It was noted that although eight traders had left the market another nine 

permanent traders had joined since the relaunch.  Increased numbers of 
casual traders were attending selling toys, bedding, cosmetics, pet food and 
jewellery providing a more varied range of products for customers.  Some 
casual traders become permanent and some permanent traders make the 
choice to change to casual traders, depending on their circumstances.  

 
 The market team held an Introduction to Market Trading workshop in January 

2019 which was attended by three new start-ups.  One was an existing trader 
from the Pop-Up market who wanted to improve her presentation skills and the 
other two were new start-ups wanting advice on promotion and selling of their 
products, tax, accountants and market rules. 

 
 The Sub-Committee discussed the importance of social media as a marketing 

tool to promote the market and whether using Facebook, Instagram or Twitter 
actually improved engagement and footfall at the market.  It was agreed that 
social media was a positive tool for promoting the market and the traders 
should be encouraged to use all social media platforms to promote their 
products and bring to the attention of the public all offers, discounts and deals 
available on their stalls. 

 
 The Sub-Committee were informed the Market Team had secured Street Food 

Heroes (SFH) for the summer period starting on Friday 26 April, 4.00 pm to 
9.00 pm.  SFH are a group of food traders that visit different towns one evening 
a month bringing a different selection of artisan street foods, music and a 
mobile bar.   

 
A question was raised regarding the adverse weather procedure and changing 
the terminology used within this policy.  Members agreed that a Task & Finish 
Group be formed to include traders to review the Leighton Buzzard Market 
Cancellation Policy 2017. 

 
 The Sub-Committee agreed the updated version of the Charity Stall Guidelines 

as laid out and to recommend to the Policy and Finance Committee for 
endorsement. 

 
 RECOMMEND to Policy & Finance Committee that it endorses the 

updated version of the Charity Stall Guidelines as per para 7 Appendix A. 
      
 RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
127/MK BUDGET REPORT 
   

The Sub-Committee received a budget report for October to December 2018. 
  

RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

Page 2



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 60 

128/MK RESPONSES TO TRADER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 The Committee received and considered a report regarding Leighton Buzzard 

Market Responses to trader information.  The report had been deferred from 
the original date of 29 November 2018 due to the Judicial Review.  The 
hearing had taken place and the Claimant’s case was dismissed on 15 
February 2019.  

 
A question was raised regarding the use of more than three gazebos per stall 
and members agreed at present the policy states up to three gazebos only, but 
this would be monitored and depending on demand, storage and finance, 
agreed that officers would consider the request at a later date. 

 
 RESOLVED to 
 

1.1 note the receipt of the second sheet of signatures and continue to 
monitor current market policy applications. 

1.2 note the proposed multi-pitch discounted gazebo idea; to decline the 
pitch fee proposals for traders using their own stall equipment and 
continue monitoring application of the current market pitch fee 
policy. 

1.3 endorse that the allocation of the four ‘holiday’ days per market for 
new permanent traders be awarded after a continued attendance for 
three months, and that allocation is pro rata for financial year. 

1.4 decline the request for the use of four gazebos 
1.5 maintain the current placement of speciality market pitches with 

variation to location of pop-up pitches. 
1.6 decline the request to move the date of Linslade Canal festival 

 
129/MK TWELVE MONTH MARKET REVIEW  
 
 The Committee received and considered a report reviewing the market after 

relaunch a year ago.  This report was also deferred from 29 November 2018 
until completion of the Judicial Review which took place on the 15 February 
2019.   

 
 It was noted that the relocation of the bollards around the market cross was 

still pending as officers await Central Bedfordshire Council’s completion of 
surface repairs which would be dependent on utility service repairs/renewal 
being completed. 

 
 One year from relaunch the stall counts show a consistent level of traders 

being maintained. With awareness of the national picture of High Streets and 
markets, increasing the sale of pitches remains a priority.  The current market 
provided a range of product categories including food products, footwear, 
clothing, stationery, jewellery, homeware, bags/luggage and pet food.  Officers 
would continue to monitor the statistics reporting back to members annually. 

 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
  

 

Page 3



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 61 

The meeting closed at 1145 hours. 

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2019. 

 

 

Chair 23 MAY 2019  

 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    23 May  2019 
 
Title:   Market Policy Updates 
 
Purpose of the Report: To endorse revised Market Trader 

Disciplinary Procedure and raise 
awareness of the intent to revise the 
Market Cancellation Procedure 

 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services  
  

Corporate Objective/s 
LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim: 2 - To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership 
working and initiatives including management of the street market, support for local businesses, 
town and community promotions and town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial   

Human Resources   

Operational/Service delivery √ Operational policy review 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Should members be minded, the proposals is; 
 
1.1 To recommend to Policy and Finance Committee the revised Market 

Trader Disciplinary Procedure (Appendix B) for endorsement.  
 

1.2 To note the further work being carried out in the review of other existing 
procedures.  

 
 

2. BACKGROUND  
 

2.1 The current Market Trader ‘Compliance’ Procedure has been utilised on 
approximately 3 – 4 occasions since it was endorsed in 2015. The most recent 
use has included a recommendation to review and update the procedure.  

 
2.2 The first Cancellation Procedure was endorsed in 2015 facilitating an 

operational decision-making framework and guidance for responding to 
adverse weather.  

 
3. INFORMATION 
 
3.2 Market Trader Disciplinary Procedure 

 
Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 
  
3.2.1 The existing Market Trader Disciplinary Policy is attached at Appendix A 

with the emerging policy attached at Appendix B. When comparing the 
adopted to the emerging policy, the overall structure of disciplinary stages 
for warnings remains the same. There is a new introduction section to help 
‘set the scene’. It has been reviewed to provide greater clarity and improve 
consistency of referencing between the stages supporting continuity of its 
application. The introduction of an 18-month period for keeping final 
warnings (Stage 4) active is included similar to the Council’s own staff 
policy, to address persistent or serious breaches/behaviours.  (N.B. on the 
attached Appendix B - ‘Blue’ highlights indicate ‘new’ and/or ‘rephrasing’ – 
the placement of some elements has been reordered to aid understanding 
and flow of the contents) 
 

3.2.2 The element of trader grievance procedures has been removed from this 
procedure and a separate procedure will be created and taken to the next 
appropriate committee for consideration/endorsement.  
 

3.3 Market Trader Grievance Procedure 
 
3.3.1 The procedure was less detailed and will need to be structured more so that 

it provides clearly staged processes and an opportunity to appeal. A draft 
will be shared with traders for comment and bought to Committee in due 
course. 

 
3.4 Market Cancellation Procedure 
 
3.4.1 In 2015 Committee recommended a written cancellation policy and 

guidelines be endorsed. This provided a consistency for operational 
decision-making and clearly set out a process for managing safety which 
was applied mostly regarding adverse weather situations.  
 

3.4.2 Having applied the current guidelines, officers and traders alike feel there 
could be other ways of delivering a market in adverse weather. At its 
meeting on 28/02/19, Committee agreed to set up a task and Finish group 
comprised of officers and traders to review the policy (126/MK). The first 
meeting took place 30/04/19. 
 

3.4.3 There is no pattern to adverse weather yet this year, the application of the 
procedure has been called on more than the previous year which has 
resulted in trader’s ‘protesting’ by ignoring the closure/non trading 
instruction. To date, the Council has not undertaken enforcement action 
though has told traders that it may consider doing this to stress the 
importance of the situation. Instead, officers have advised traders to liaise 
with their insurers to confirm they remain protected should an incident take 
place when a market has been ‘officially’ cancelled/closed by the market 
authority, i.e. the Council. It is likely they are not. Officers have also sought 
advice on the position of the Council about insurance and responsibilities.  

 

3.4.4 At times of closure, the  variety between trader’s perspectives of ‘safe’ 
operational practices has been on display when traders have chosen to flout 

Page 6



 
  

Council notices of closure. Whilst recognising the ‘protest’ of Trader’s 
actions in trading, the Council cannot endorse such action on the grounds 
of safety and must acknowledge a continued level of responsibility for the 
actions of traders.  

 
3.4.5 The principal intention being explored is to keep the market open. In moving 

forward with this intention, there will need to be compromise on both sides 
that acknowledges the responsibilities and insurance protections in place. 
Alternative trading arrangements being explored will need the active 
cooperation of traders. 

 
3.4.6 It is unfortunate that having had a good initial meeting with traders towards 

the drafting workable alternative operational arrangements, the Council is 
currently out to tender for its Insurance provider. This means that until such 
time that officers can secure the view on whether early draft proposals would 
be supported by its newly contracted insurer, no final draft can be shared 
with traders in readiness for Committee’s consideration. 

 
 
4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The amendments to the Market Trader Disciplinary procedure are made with 

 the intention to improve the clarity and application of the procedure.  
 
4.2 The intent is to keep the market open in adverse weather conditions within 

safe operational parameters. Liaison with traders will be reconvened once 
initial feedback from the Council’s newly appointed insurers is secured on 
draft proposals.  

 
 
 
 

END 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

May 2019 V1 

Leighton Buzzard Market  
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
LU7 1HD  
 

Website: www. 

 

 LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET                                              
Trader Disciplinary Procedure  

 

Stage 1 – Verbal Warning / Placed on Trader’s Personal File 
Trader Details 

Title:        

Full Name:        

Trading Name:       

 

Description of Breach Clause 

reference 

Details 

Violation   

 

 

 

 

Opening/Closing Times   

 

 

 

 

 

Abusive/Threatening 

Behaviour  

 

 

 

 

 

Other   

 

 

 

 

Please include all relevant information. Issue orginal to trader and a copy in traders file.  

  

Issued by:                                                                    Date:       (dd/mm/yyyy) 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



May 2019 -  V1 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
Adrian Harrison, Market Manager markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk . 01525 631912 

 

[Click Here to Select a Date]  

[Recipient title & name] 

[Recipient address] 

 

Dear [Recipient], 
 
Re: Leighton Buzzard Market, Stage 2. Written Warning - Breach of Rules and 
Regulations  
 
This letter is a Stage 2 written warning issued under the Council’s Trader Disciplinary 
Procedure. It refers to [incident/s] that took place on [date/s] in the [Charter/Handmade 
& Craft/Farmers/’other’] market. 
 
[description of incidents /clarify the breach, e.g. previously given verbal warning/s] 
 
I refer to your failure to comply with the licence conditions (Clause [no. XX]) in respect 
of the breache/s detailed above. You have previously been given a Stage 1. Verbal 
Warning with regard to this type of breach on [Date].  
(OR) 
You have created a serious initial breach of your Licence conditions. (Clause [no.XX]), 
namely [breach details].  
 
If you do not comply with this written warning by immediately rectifying this breach, 
then continued failure would lead to a Stage 3 ‘final written warning’ which may lead 
to termination of your licence and your ability to trade from this market.  

Should you wish to appeal your warning, in the first instance, appeals should be 
submitted in writing to the Market Manager within 7 days of the date on this letter. The 
appeal should state on what grounds the appeal is made and include any supporting 
evidence. It is your responsibility to obtain evidence in support of your appeal.  For 
further information please refer to the Market Trader Disciplinary Procedures. 

  
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Adrian Harrison  
Market Manager  
 
cc. Trader’s personal file 
Enc. Leighton Buzzard Market Trader Disciplinary Procedure 

Page 11

mailto:markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



May 2019 – V1 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
Adrian Harrison, Market Manager markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk . 01525 631912 

 

[Click Here to Select a Date]  

[Recipient title & name] 

[Recipient address] 

 

Dear [Recipient], 
 
Re: Leighton Buzzard Market – Stage 3. Final Written Warning - Breach of Rules 
and Regulations 
 
This letter is a Stage 3 written warning issued under the Council’s Trader Disciplinary  
Procedure. It refers to [incident/s] that took place on [date/s] in the on the 
[Charter/Handmade & Craft/Farmers/’other’] market.  
 
[description of incidents /clarify the breach, e.g. previously given verbal warning/s] 
 
I refer to your [continued] failure to comply with the licence conditions (Clause [no. 
XX]) in respect of the breach/es detailed above. You have previously been given [a 
verbal/Stage 1 / Stage 2 formal] warning with regard to this type of breach on [Date]. 
(OR) 
You have created a serious initial breach of your Licence conditions. (Clause [no.XX]), 
namely [breach details].  
 
If you do not comply with this written warning by immediately rectifying this breach, 
then continued failure would lead to Stage 4. termination of your licence and your 
ability to trade from this market.  

Should you wish to appeal your warning, in the first instance, appeals should be 
submitted in writing to the Market Manager within 7 days of the date on this letter. The 
appeal should state on what grounds the appeal is made and include any supporting 
evidence. It is your responsibility to obtain evidence in support of your appeal. For 
further information please refer to the Market Trader Disciplinary Procedures. 

  
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Adrian Harrison 
Market Manager 
 
cc. Trader’s personal file 
Enc. Leighton Buzzard Market Trader Disciplinary Procedure 

Page 13

mailto:markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



May 2019 – V1 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
Adrian Harrison, Market Manager markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk . 01525 631912 

 

[Click Here to Select a Date]  

[Recipient title & name] 

[Recipient address] 

 

 

 

Dear [Recipient], 
 
Re: Leighton Buzzard Market - Stage 4. Termination of Licence – Breach of Rules 
and Regulations. 
  
This letter is a Stage 4 termination of licence letter issued under the Council’s Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure. It refers to [incident/s]  that took place on the 
[Charter/Handmade & Craft //Farmers/’other’] market.  
 
I refer to your continued failure to comply with the licence [conditions/rules and 
regulations] (Clause [no.XX]) in respect of [breach details]. You have previously been 
issued with Stage 1, 2 & 3 warnings with regard to this type of breach on [date/s].  
(OR) 
You are in breach of your licence to trade and/or the Market Rules and Regulations 
(Clause [no.XX]). The [breach details] is of a severity that I have no other alternative 
but to terminate your licence.  
 
I hereby give you notice of termination of all licences held by you on all market days 
of Leighton Buzzard Market, to take effect from [Date].  

Should you wish to appeal your termination to trade, in the first instance, appeals 
should be submitted in writing to the Market Officer within 7 days of the date of this 
letter. The appeal should state on what grounds the appeal is made and include any 
supporting evidence. It is your responsibility to obtain evidence that supports your 
appeal. For further information please refer to the Market Trader Compliance 
Procedures 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

mailto:markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk


May 2019 – V1 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
Adrian Harrison, Market Manager markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk . 01525 631912 

 

Adrian Harrison 
Market Manager 
 
cc. Trader’s personal file 
 
Enc. Leighton Buzzard Market Disciplinary Policy 

Page 16

mailto:markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk


 

 

 

Market Sub Committee                      

Date:           23 May 2019 

Title:          Market General Update. 

Purpose of the Report:                         To provide an update on market activity. 

Contact Officer:                                    Adrian Harrison, Market Manager  

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. To continue to support a vibrant 
town through partnership working & initiatives including 
management of the street market, support businesses, town & 
community promotions & town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial √ Utilising annual budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ Market Development Plan – Recorded actions/updates. 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

1.1 To note the report.  

 

2 QUARTER FOUR ROUND-UP ON DELIVERY PLAN TARGETS FOR, 

JANUARY -  MARCH 2018/2019  
 

2.1 The table of activity presented below provides an end of year Themed and 
Speciality Market programme round-up of target delivery for financial year 
2018/19. 

  

 Themed Markets 2018/19 Comments 

March 31st April Easter Market & Easter Egg Hunt Delivered 

May 13th – 17th  National Love Your Local Market Fortnight  Delivered 

July 7th  Independent's Day Delivered 

August 2nd  National Playday/Children's Day Delivered 

September 17 – October 2 British Food Fortnight Delivered 

October 20th Apple Day  Focused on British Food Fortnight  - 

October 23rd Children’s Halloween Letter Hunt Delivered 

December 1   Small Business Saturday Delivered 

December 24 Christmas ‘Eve’ Market Delivered 

February 19  Fairtrade Fortnight  Not delivered 

 Visiting Market 2018/19  

May  France at Home Market Delivered 

 Speciality Markets 2018/19  

September 29 Vintage, Retro and Collectables Market - Launch Delivered 

March 30 Vintage, Retro and Collectables Market Delivered 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



 

  

   

 

2.2 Market trader recruitment updates. 
 

2.2.1 At its meeting 16 August 2018, Committee agreed a new approach to target 
setting based on sale of pitches. This reporting system commences in this 
financial year. 
 

2.2.2 The tables below provide trader figures: 
 

a) Trader joined / left, figures for quarter four – Jan to March 2018/19: 
 

Trader type Joined  left 

Permanent 3 3 

Casual 4 - 

Farmers 1 0 

Craft 2 0 

Charities, Community Groups 4 - 

Pop Up  5 - 

 

 A new butcher working both days. 

 A further two new traders have joined Tuesday’s market. 

 One of the leaving traders had his contract terminated due to non-
compliance  

 One other trader left due to securing full-time employment. 
 

b) Trader joined / left, figures for the whole year to date – 2018/19: 
 

Trader type Joined  Left 

Permanent 7 5 

Casual 20 - 

Farmers 2 1 

Craft 4 0 

Charities, Community Groups 24 - 

Pop Up 11 - 

 
2.2.3   Farmers market 
 

One new addition to the Farmers market. This trader has progressed from 
the Pop-up market. 
 

2.2.4   Pop-up market (supporting start-up businesses)  
 

 Five new traders have trialled the Pop-up market since Christmas. Each have 
a further two trading days on consecutive months to hone their businesses. 

 
2.2.5 Handmade and Craft market (HM&C) (runs March to December)  
 

          Two new traders have joined the HM&C market having progressed via the 
Pop-up market. With HM&C market numbers faring well. There is always a 
variance of numbers attending from month to month due to other festivals 
and events taking place. 

Page 18



 

  

   

 

2.2.6 Charity Pitch 
 

Charities, community groups and not for profit organisations continue to take 
up the opportunity of a free use market charity pitch.  
 

 
3   GENERAL UPDATES 
 
3.1     Trader Recruitment Workshops 
 
3.1.1 Two trader workshops have been held (Jan and March) with seven 

attendees. So far, one trader has joined the craft market. The conversion rate 
reflects the type of person attending is literally ‘starting out’ and in the 
planning stage, sometimes without a product line and wants ‘general’ 
information about the needs of a new business. 

 
3.1.2 Trader recruitment and general customer awareness activities include 

advertising in the Bee Local Magazine. In the January ‘19 edition the 
‘Introduction to Market Trading’ workshops were advertised along with the 
Pop-up market. The March edition promoted the general market.  

 
3.1.3  An easy to use trader enquiry form has been added to the market website.   

Once submitted, it allows officers to record their interest and to respond 
accordingly. Phone enquiries are directed to the market website also.  

 
3.2 Social media platforms: 
 
3.2.1 Facebook 

           As at the end of March 2019, our Facebook likes were at 820 which is an     

increase of 87 since the beginning of January 2019. Our (organic) posts 

reach was 17,789 throughout March 2019, for the previous (Jan – Mar ’19) 

quarter of the year our post reach was over 50,000.  

Instagram 

As of the 10th April our Instagram followers were at 497 with post impressions 

reaching 1873 that week. As of the end of March, our account followers were 

at circa 480 with post impressions reaching 2349. 

Overall, the market’s social media platforms are providing a good medium to 

communicate, advertise the various events and markets with respective 

‘viewing’ numbers increasing month on month. Since launching Instagram in 

September 2018, followers have increased by 179% and impressions by 

around 163%. Facebook has seen likes increase of just over 92% since 

March 2018. 

 

 

Page 19



 

  

   

 

3.3 Customer incentives 
 
3.3.1 Since before Christmas, the new prize draw voucher scheme has been 

implemented. The winners, from a larger cross section of the community, 
including local schools, have started to spend the vouchers on the market 
with many traders reaping the benefits. The prize draw vouchers have been 
given to Town Council as event prizes and as raffle prizes for the Mayor’s 
charity. 

 
 

4.        MARKET PUBLICITY 

4.1   In addition to the electronic signage at the station, the additional electronic 

signs have been used to promote the market and includes other market 

related events. The market social media platforms are also promoted which 

in turn helps to keep the public informed. 

4.1.2   A sign has been in place at the bus stop where Waterborne Walk meets the 

High Street. This promotes all markets activities.  

4.1.3   The market continues to be featured in the Council’s About Town newsletter, 

more recently promoting the charity and community markets. 

4.1.4  The market has also featured in Bee Local Magazine with an advert about 

the Pop-Up Market and editorial about becoming a Market Trade. A general 

market promo was feature in March edition.  

 
5. 2019-2020 WORK PLAN  

 

5.1 The Themed, Visiting and additional Speciality market plan for 2019/20 
financial year is presented below: 

 

 Themed Markets 2019/20 Comments 

13th April Easter Rideout Delivered 

16th April  Easter Egg Hunt Delivered 

17th – 31st May Love your local Market fortnight,  #LYLM  

6th July  Independents’ Day 
 

6th August  National Children’s Playday 
 

22nd October Children’s Halloween Letter Hunt 
 

24th December Christmas Eve Market 
 

 Visiting Market 2019/2020  

Fri 26th April, 31st May, 28th June, 26th 
July, 30th August, 27th September 
(Last Friday of the month) 

Street Food Heroes Fri 26 Apr 
delivered, 
ongoing 

Fri 25th – Sat 26th October 
 

France at Home Market 
 

Page 20



 

  

   

 

 
5.2      Plans are ongoing to promote ‘Tasty Tuesday’, a monthly lunchtime social 

event based around the market. The first one being held on 18 June and 
continuing through to August. 

 
 

5.3       Street Food Heroes (SFH) started in April for the summer period. SFH is an 
independent enterprise of food traders that will visit Leighton Buzzard one 
evening a month bringing a different selection of artisan foods. Each visit to 
Leighton Buzzard will be on the last day of the month from April (26th) and 
continues through until the last Friday in September.  

 
6. TRADER RECRUITMENT 
 

6.1 The market team has added another date in June for the third ‘Introduction 
to Market Trading’ workshop with more dates planned. Since the previous 
two workshops, the market team has tailored their presentation based on 
feedback received. 

 
7. ANNUAL MARKET WORK PLAN 
 

6.3 At its meeting on 21 February 2019 (Ref.6.3), Committee received the annual 
work plan.  In the coming months officers will review for Committee’s 
consideration (not in order of importance or delivery), see Appendix A. 

 
 
END 

 
 

 Speciality Markets 2019/2020  

29th June, 31st August, 30th November 
(when there is a 5th Saturday in the 
month) 

Vintage, Retro and Collectables Market 
 

 

18th June, 16th July, 13th August Tasty Tuesday  

09th November  Vegan Market  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item: 7 
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
 

Task 

Target 

date 

Committee  

Update - 23 May 2019 

Delivery 

status 

1 Waste Management 
The Council’s waste management 
contract is due for renewal this year. 
Officers will research options for the 
market. 

TBC Grounds & 
Enviro’nt 
P&F 

Options to be explored inc. market peer’s approaches. 
No review date has yet been set by G&E services.  

 

2 Reducing Waste 
Officers explore ways and work up a 
campaign approach that seeks to 
encourage less reliance on ‘once 
only’ uses for bags and receptacles 
by traders and consumers alike. 

Summer 
2019 

 21/03/19- trader newsletter raising awareness/ information 
on Government action on single use plastic bags.  
Researching peer market approaches inc. exploring local 
links.  
Promotional activity for launch to include prize/give-a-ways 
of reusable jute bags with LB Market logo for ongoing 
promotion.  

 
 

A 

3 Cashless Payments 
Officers will review the current 
procedure with the view to move to 
cashless payments for safety and 
administrative efficiency. 

TBC Operational Current position – speciality markets for  2019/2020 
(Vintage, Tasty Tuesday, Vegan) payment will be in 
advance via BACS – as previously successfully done with 
minimum of admin required. This and other methods of 
payment will be investigated for all our markets. 

 

4 Compliance procedure – (trader 
compliance/complaints), Officers will 
review the procedure. 

29 Aug 
2 Sep 16 
Sept 

Market Sub  
C&E 
P&F  

No update.  
When drafted, inc. officer/trader liaison, this will need to be 
recommended to Policy & Finance Committee for 
endorsement.  

 

5 Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing 
Ongoing monitoring and review as 
necessary. 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E 

Ongoing – as part of the Annual review undertaken 
September 2019 (ref action No.11)  

 
Ref. 

No.11 

6 Adverse weather procedure 
Officers will review the procedure. 

29 July P&F 30/04/19 – informal officer/trader workshop took place to 
explore issues and options. 
Council insurer liaison needed for clarity of permisable 
action – not likely to be confirmeduntil July ’19. 
03/06/19_final draft to go to P&F Committee to facilitate 
promt action following appointment of insurer. 

 
A 

P
age 23



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item: 7 
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 
7 Great British Market Awards 

This is an annual award led by the 
National Association of British 
Market Authorities (NABMA). 
Officers will research the award 
categories and assess the criteria in 
readiness to enter the market for an 
award. 

TBC Operational Information has not yet been released about this year’s 
awards. 

 

8 Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers 
have remained constant for some 
time. Officers will research similar 
markets and reassess the guidance 
documents and its brand - aiming to 
improve trader numbers. 

TBC Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

Liaison with Farmers market – TBC. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  recommendation 
for P&F for endorsement – if the need for alterations are 
identified.  
 

 

9 Engagement with traders / format 
for Committee trader 
representation 
Officers will review the current 
activity giving structure to 
representation and in doing so seek 
advice from the National Market 
Traders Federation (NMTF). 

TBC Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

NMTF have a revised scheme for supporting trader 
representations. 
 

 

10 Trader Bursary 
Officers will review the scheme. 

TBC  Current – no bursaries have been requested for the last 2 
financial years. Bursary offering presented to trader 
workshop attendees, will collate feedback and report to 
committee. 

 

11 Annual monitoring review  
By end September on relaunch 
anniversary.  
 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E (if 
recommend
ations 
apply) 

Inc. Ref. No.5 -  Review of current pitch sizes and pricing 
Ongoing monitoring and review as necessary. 

 

 
 

P
age 24



 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    23 May 2019 
 
Title:   Market Budget Report 
 
Purpose of the Report: To update Committee on market budgets 
 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Cultural and Economic 

Services  

 

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2: To promote & 

develop a vibrant town through partnership working & 
initiatives including management of the street market, 
provision of town & community promotions, town centre 
enhancements, tourism & practical support for local 
businesses 

Implications:   

Financial √ Review of income and expenditure figures. 
Reprofile the street market budget. 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded, 
 
1.1 To note the report. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 All figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and 

rounded up to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and 
expenditure received and paid during the months presented. 

 
2.2 The figures provided in sections 3 and 4 reflect a two-year financial period, not 

a calendar two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as 
month 12.   

 
2.3      Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including 

staffing. It was noted that a more detailed expenditure report would be produced 
as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports which would be 
provided to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic Services.  
 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



  
 
3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING JANUARY TO MARCH 2018/19 
 
3.1 Income, expenditure and net for January to March 2018/19. 
 

Income 
Summary 

Jan-18 Jan-19 Feb-18 Feb-19 Mar-18 Mar-19 

Total Income  £ 6,476.00   £5,343.00   £  5,900.00   £ 5,468.00   £  4,386.00   £  5,931.00  

Total 
Expenditure 

 £9,746.00   £8,117.001   £  9,057.00  £11,062.002    £ 9,787.00    £ ,617.003  

Net Income -£ 3,270.00  -£  2,774.00  -£  3,157.00  -£ 5,594.00  -£ 5,401.00  -£ 2,686.00  

 

Income 
 

Note:  
All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any further 
absence is charged and paid back. 
 
Expenditure 
 

Note: There is no pattern to receiving contracted service invoices which reflects as 
variance in monthly figures. 
Market promotion, advertising and themed market activity will be reflective in monthly 
spend as per the delivery timetable. 
 
1 Expenditure in January ‘19 shows a decrease in staff training and security costs  

  (contracted service) of £1,267 compared to January 19. 
2 Expenditure in February ‘19 shows an increase in Temporary Staff, Staff Training, 

  Subscriptions and Printing and Stationary costs of £2,238 compared to February 18. 
3 Expenditure in March ‘19 shows a decrease in Repairs & Maintenance, Rates and  

  Publicity costs of £1,277 compared with March 18. 

 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-£40,000.00

-£20,000.00

 £-

 £20,000.00

Jan-18 Jan-19 Feb-18 Feb-19 Mar-18 Mar-19 Total

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for Jan 
2019 - March 2019 vs. Jan 2018 - March 2018

Total Income Total Expenditure Net Income Target Net Income Total

Page 26



  
 
3.2 Income comparison for per market day/type January to March 2019/20.  
 

Total Market 
Income 

Jan-18 Jan-19 Feb-18 Feb-19 Mar-18 Mar-19 

Tuesday  £ 2,744.00   £  2,945.001 £ 2,224.00   £  2,669.00   £  2,169.00   £ 2,285.00  

Saturday  £ 3,306.00   £  2,224.00   £ 3,514.00   £  2,295.002   £  1,815.00   £ 2,386.003  

Farmers  £    126.00   £     144.00   £ 162.00   £     144.00   £     162.00   £  Closed    

Speciality 
(Inc Pop-Up) 

 £       -     £        30.00   £      -     £        60.00   £        -     £         -    

Handmade & 
Craft 

 £       -     £         -     £      -     £        -     £     240.00   £       240.00  

Commercial  £    300.00   £         -     £      -     £       300.00   £         -     £    1,000.00  

Other  £       -     £         -     £      -     £        -     £         -     £         20.00  

 
Income 
 

 The Handmade and Craft Market operates annually from March to December.   

 There were 5 Saturdays in January ‘18 compared to 4 in January ‘19. 

 There were 5 Tuesdays in January ‘18 compared to 4 in January ‘19. 

 There was an extra Speciality Market in March ‘19 (Vintage & Collectible). 

 Commercial activity, e.g. Utilities, etc. has significantly increased since February 
compared to previous year. 

 

1 Market Closed on Tuesday Jan1 with a loss of income of £563 (average Tuesday  

   income for the month) 
2 Market Closed on Saturday Feb 9 due to high winds with a loss of income of £765  

  (average Saturday income for the month). 
3 Market Closed on Saturday March 16 due to high winds with a loss of income of £728  

  (average Saturday income for the month) and a loss of Farmers Market income of  
   £144 (taking average attendance). 
 

 
 
 

         
 
 
   
 

 £-

 £500.00

 £1,000.00

 £1,500.00

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Total

Other Market Income for 
January - March 2019

Farmers Speciality (Inc Pop-Up)

Handmade & Craft Commercial

Other

 £-

 £2,000.00

 £4,000.00

 £6,000.00

 £8,000.00

 £10,000.00

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Total

Tuesday & Saturday 
Charter Market Income for 

January - March 2019

Tuesday Saturday

Page 27



  
3.3 At the time of writing this report, final adjustments were being made to the 

Council’s end of year accounts. Therefore, the figures presented in the table 
below are subject to work being completed: 
 
‘Actual year to date’ against predicted ‘Current Annual Budget’ 2018/19.  

 
Annual Summary 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 Target  

2019/2020 
Actual  

2018/2019 

Total Income  £   93,128.00   £    82,847.00   £ 82,576.00  £ 104,250  £  82,576.00  

Total Expenditure  £115,886.00   £  112,562.00  £115,726.00  £ 117,399  £115,726.00  

Net Income -£  22,758.00  -£   29,715.00  -£33,150.00  - £  13,149   -£  33,150.00  

      - £  20,001.00 

 

 
 

 
 
               
END 

-£50,000.00

 £-

 £50,000.00

 £100,000.00

 £150,000.00

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019

Annual Summary

Total Income Total Expenditure Net Income

Page 28


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 MARKET POLICY UPDATES
	Stage 1 - Verbal Warning  May 2019 V1
	Stage 2 - Second Warning May 2019 V1
	Stage 3 - Final Warning May 2019 V1
	Stage 4 - Termination of Licence Letter May 2017 V1

	8 MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
	Appendix A_Market Annual Work Plan

	9 BUDGET REPORT

